
CLIFFORD LAKE 

LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD 

HEARING OF PRACTICABILITY & REVIEW OF APPORTIONMENTS 

August 10, 2022 

A special meeting of the Clifford Lake, Lake Improvement Board was held in the Douglass 

Township Hall, 3521 W. McBrides Rd., Stanton, Michigan on the 10th day of August 2022 at 7:00 

p.m. 

The hearing of practicability was called to order by Chairman Koepke at 7:01 p.m. 

PRESENT:  Tom Koepke, Chairman 

Todd Sattler, Secretary, Montcalm County Drain Commissioner 

Matt Moorman, Abutting Property Owner’s Representative 

ABSENT:  Adam Petersen, Board of Commissioner’s Representative 

Michon Wiesen, Douglass Township Representative  

ALSO PRESENT: See attached.  

Chairman Koepke introduces the lake board members and Rick Buteyn of Progressive 

Engineering. 

A motion was made by Todd and seconded by Matt to accept the minutes of the June 23, 2022; 

meeting as presented. Motion carried. 

 Todd explained the procedures of the Hearing of Practicability and the Review of 

Apportionments and the necessity of both hearings. 

Presentation 

Rick provided a presentation to the board and the residents detailing the treatments performed 

in 2022. He advised of the special EGLE permit restrictions. He explained the chemicals used 

and spoke of the Sonar treatment. Rick provided the details and breakdown of the current 

budget in comparison to the two proposed budgets for the next program. Rick stated that the 

budget in Proposal A is to keep up with the rising chemical prices and keep doing the level of 

treatments that have been done. The budget presented under Proposal B is to allow for 

additional treatments to improve lake quality further. He advised that chemical prices have 

increased by 15%, permit fees increased by $75.00 per year, and this will allow the LIB to build 

up a surplus for contingency. Rick provided a line by line breakdown of the two proposed 

budgets. He stated that the larger budget will allow for more effective treatments and 

chemicals to be used and allows for native plants (lily pads) to be treated, as well. Rick advised 

the residents of the types of weeds that are covered by the EGLE permits for treatment and 

targeting. He stated that some plants will require harvesting if they are not kept under control 



as they grow. Rick went over the different types of algae that may be found in the lake and 

advised residents to contact him and Tom if they see blue-green algae on the lake so it can be 

tested. Rick advised of the expectations of what is provided by the lake management 

consultant.  

The chairman opened the meeting up to the public for questions and comments. 

Matt Moorman asked about harvesting and whether that in included in the budget.  

Rick responded that it is not included but could be covered once a contingency budget is built 

up. 

Carol Hackett thanked Rick for the presentation and information. She stated that her concern is 

with continuing to dump chemicals into the lake for treatment and also asked if there is 

possibly state funding for the lake since there is a public access. She also asked about the 

influence of failing septic systems on the lake.  

Rick said that the state does not earmark money for lake improvement and no grants are 

currently available that would apply to Clifford Lake. He also stated that failing septic systems 

are a township issue and would require a resolution at the township level to require testing of 

septic systems. He said that failing septic systems would leech more nutrients into the lake and 

the LIB is able to test for water quality. 

Carol asked Rick to go over lily pad treatments again. 

Rick explained the procedures. 

Tom asked Rick to go over the different methods for treating lily pads. 

Rick told the board that there are two methods for treatment, the first is chemical. The second 

method is manual harvesting where the lily pads are physically cut down and removed. 

Carol asked about the effects of fireworks and wake boats on the water quality.  

Rick stated that he doesn’t know much about the effects of fireworks, other than that they are 

polluting the water. He stated that the legal distance for wake boats is 100 ft from shore, but 

200-300 ft is preferable to help the wake from scouring seawalls and disturbing small 

ecosystems near the lake shore. 

Larry Deuel asked if the program could be reduced to three years instead of five years since 

costs are so up in the air.  

Rick said that it is possible and that the board can hold public hearings earlier than five years, if 

necessary. 

Joe Tarkowski asked about what the recommended surplus is. 



Todd stated that he prefers that the lake boards keep 1-1 ½ years budget to allow for 

contingency as there is no borrowing mechanism for the lake boards if they run out of money. 

Tom asked Rick to explain how the budgets are locked in. 

Rick advised that the consulting fees are fixed for the next five years and will not change, but 

chemical prices can continue to increase. Todd explained that we bid out the treatment 

contracts to get the best pricing. 

Joe Tarkowski said that he believes the board should levy as much money as possible to 

improve the lake since all of the residents have a sizeable investment into their houses and 

property. 

There being no further questions or comments from the public, the Hearing of Practicability 

was closed by a motion from Todd and seconded by Matt . Motion Carried. 

The Resolution to Proceed with Improvements was offered for approval to the Lake Board. 







CLIFFORD LAKE 

PUBLIC HEARING 

AGENDA 

 Chairman calls meeting to order 

 Approval of June 23, 2022 minutes 

 Chairman introduces the Lake Board Members and Rick Buteyn 

 Todd explains the procedures of the Lake Board 

PUBLIC HEARING OF PRACTICABILITY 

 Presentation of Proposed Program 2023 thru 2027 

 Chairman opens the hearing up for questions and comments 

 Hearing of Practicability closed 

 Resolution to Proceed with Improvements 

REVIEW OF APPORTIONMENTS HEARING 

 Presentation of Special Assessment Roll 

 Chairman opens the hearing up for questions and comments 

 Corrections to Special Assessment Roll 

 Review of Apportionments Hearing closed 

 Resolution Confirming Special Assessment Roll 

 Adjourn meeting 





CLIFFORD LAKE, LAKE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
PROPOSED BUDGET B EXHIBIT A 

2022 - 2026 

IMPROVEMENT  COST 

Nuisance Aquatic Plant Control           $26,000 
Aquatic Plant Control Coordination/Field Evaluations $8,000 
Administration and Contingency  $3,000  
Total Annual Cost                              $37,000

The amount of herbicide use in any given year will depend on the type and distribution of plants in Clifford 
Lake and Department of Environmental Quality permit conditions. Plant control activities are proposed to be 
coordinated under the direction of the lake board’s environmental consultant. The consultant would be 
responsible for preparing bid documents or contract extensions for the plant control program, assisting the lake 
board with the selection of the plant control contractors, and performing follow-up inspections to ensure work is 
performed in a satisfactory manner. The consultant would report to the lake board regarding the performance of 
the plant control contractors and would make recommendations to the lake board regarding payments to the 
contractors. 

Project administration will include all costs related to meetings, postage, copies, mailings, notices, Drain 
Commission administration, and legal proceedings. In accordance with Part 309 of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, Act 451 of 1994, a lake board may add not let than 10% or mote than 15% of the 
total project cost for contingent expenses. 

ASSESSMENT BENEFIT FACTORS 

The special Assessment District for Clifford Lake includes all properties which border the lake and back lots 
which have deeded or dedicated lake access. Special assessments for the project are to be apportioned in the 
following manner: 

USE AND SIZE FACTORS 

Developed Lakefront Parcels  1 Unit  $216.69 
Developed Backlot Parcels  ½ Unit  $108.35 
Undeveloped Lakefront Parcels ½ Unit  $108.35 
Undeveloped Backlot Parcels  ¼ Unit  $54.17 

*Contiguous lots in common ownership and/or accessory lots in common ownership shall be assessed as a 
single parcel provided only one dwelling unit exists on the parcel. 

*Contiguous lots shall mean lots in common ownership touching along a boundary or point. 

*Accessory lots shall mean lots in common ownership that have a garage, storage facility, drain field, or other 
improvement that benefits the primary parcel. 

*No benefit factors will be assigned to Lot 1 of Baily’s Shores. Property owners having an interest in Lot 1 of 
Baily’s Shores will be assessed according to the location of the primary parcel. Lots 2 through 10 will be 
apportioned as lake front lots; all other parcels will be apportioned as backlot properties. 










